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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I am joined by

          3  my colleague David Yassky, and today we will be

          4  conducting a hearing on some legislation and

          5  resolutions dealing with referenda and campaign

          6  finance reform; a preconsidered introductory bill,

          7  which is a revision of an old Introduction No. 488

          8  that Council Member Yassky and I introduced at the

          9  beginning of the summer, and will include

         10  Resolutions No's 552A, 10-1037.

         11                 These bills and resos are

         12  particularly timely as we approach another election

         13  season in the City.  New York City has been

         14  trailblazing in regards to campaign finance reform,

         15  and we would be in the vanguard with this

         16  preconsidered intro that addresses referenda finance

         17  reform.

         18                 What prompted this discussion was our

         19  Mayor saying initially about the nonpartisan

         20  elections that it was time for it to be heard and

         21  that he would reach into his own pocket and pay for

         22  getting that message out.  This act underscored how

         23  wealth and influence were riddling the referenda

         24  process specifically, and the democratic process

         25  generally.  We are extremely troubled by this.
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          2                 The Council has also been troubled by

          3  the formulation of these ballot questions.  They are

          4  often phrased in such a way purposefully drafted so

          5  as to beg for an affirmative response.  The

          6  Commissioners for the Charter Commissions which

          7  draft these questions and study these issues are

          8  hand picked by the Mayor.  The Mayor then proceeds

          9  to campaign for his charter revisions, adding the

         10  credibility of his or her office to such revisions,

         11  which historically I do not believe have been in the

         12  best interest of the people of New York City.

         13                 In this case, the Mayor threatened to

         14  use his own private wealth to further weigh this

         15  process in his favor.

         16                 The process has become totally

         17  imbalanced, saturated with one-sided information,

         18  influenced by private wealth and special interests,

         19  poisoning the political process throughout this

         20  country.

         21                 The Council is additionally extremely

         22  concerned with the ballot initiative political

         23  circus that we are witnessing in California.  A

         24  referenda in and of itself is not a bad thing.

         25  Quite the contrary, it is another chance for the
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          2  people to speak. However, charter revision

          3  commissions and wealthy Californians and wealthy

          4  mayors here in New York City are perverting the

          5  referenda process. The responsibilities of the

          6  legislative branch of government, the

          7  representatives of the people, are being usurped and

          8  undermined. The bill we will be hearing today

          9  attempts to correct this heavily imbalanced process,

         10  and even the playing field.

         11                 The preconsidered intro creates a

         12  referenda finance program within the already

         13  existing confines of a highly-regarded and

         14  successful campaign finance program.

         15                 Now, in addition to candidates

         16  receiving matching funds, ballot proposal committees

         17  will also be able to take part in the program.

         18                 The limits for contributions and

         19  expenditures limits and eligibility have been set

         20  equal for those of the Mayor. The highest such

         21  limits and most stringent eligibility requirements.

         22                 This will ensure that only the most

         23  serious of Committees will be able to access the

         24  public funds, therefore even the burden on any

         25  public expenditures, and only those committees that
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          2  have received the vote of confidence from the people

          3  of this City, because they will have to have at

          4  least a thousand contributions, which is one

          5  requirement within the eligibility threshold.  The

          6  legislation would also require the Campaign Finance

          7  Board to analyze the annual report, ballot issues in

          8  this City for the past ten years, and to monitor the

          9  effects of this legislation on such campaigns.

         10                 The intent of this legislation is in

         11  no way to encourage the ballot initiative process

         12  and bring us closer to the California context.

         13  We're trying to create an even playing field that

         14  keeps us away from the circus.  This is done by

         15  keeping contributions lower, giving New Yorkers

         16  access across the economic spectrum and equivalent

         17  voice.  This program will also provide matching

         18  public funds, giving voice to various positions and

         19  ideas that otherwise would not have had the money to

         20  be heard.  The overall effect will be to balance the

         21  political playing field, giving voters a much more

         22  diverse spectrum of ideas.

         23                 We will additionally be hearing some

         24  resolutions today that deal with the voting process

         25  on the state level.  One includes Resolution 52A,
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          2  which supports the Clean Money/Clean Elections Act.

          3  In the assembly and in the State senate, this bill

          4  would amend and reform the campaign finance system

          5  in New York. This act would do a great deal to make

          6  the State system more like the City system,

          7  mandating contribution limits, expenditure limits,

          8  and providing public financing, making the State

          9  electoral process freer from special interest money

         10  and influence.

         11                 Resolution 1030 and 1037 deal with

         12  State legislation that will implement the Help

         13  America Voter Act, also known as HAVA. Resolution

         14  1030 urges passage of Assembly Bill 5473A, which

         15  requires all polling places to be accessible to

         16  voters with physical disabilities in accordance with

         17  the Americans with Disabilities Act.  Resolution

         18  1031 urges passage of Assembly Bill 8841, which

         19  establishes a uniform administrative complaint

         20  procedure for any person who believes there's a

         21  violation of the Help America Voter Act.  Resolution

         22  1032 urges passage of Assembly Bill 8834, which

         23  prevents undervoting by requiring the use of the

         24  censor latch mechanism on voting machines.

         25  Resolution 1033 urges passage of Assembly Bill 8842,
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          2  which would establish a detailed list of voter

          3  identification forms for new registrants and

          4  provides for a statewide computerized voter

          5  registration list.

          6                 Resolution 1034 urges passage of

          7  Assembly Bill 8831, which would amend the current

          8  paper ballot instructions to explicitly clarify the

          9  importance of avoiding casting overvotes and notify

         10  voters of their right to a replacement ballot.

         11  Resolution 1035 supports newly amended Charter 263

         12  of the laws of New York 2003 regarding the posting

         13  of information relevant to the electoral process in

         14  conformance with HAVA and urges the adoption of an

         15  explicit voter's bill of rights that fully informs

         16  the electorate of their fundamental right to cast

         17  their vote.

         18                 Resolution 1036 urges passage of

         19  Assembly Bill 8833, which would provide for county

         20  boards of election to assume control of voting

         21  machines and other functions relating to the

         22  election administration process.

         23                 Finally, Resolution 1037 urges

         24  passages of the Voting Systems Standard Act of 2003

         25  submitted in the Assembly, which establishes new
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          2  standards for voting machines, ensuring access by

          3  voters with disabilities, adopting a single

          4  statewide voting machine through a competitive

          5  bidding process, and requiring a voter verifiable

          6  audit trail.

          7                 Today we expect to hear testimony

          8  from the Campaign Finance Board and various public

          9  advocates.  Before we begin the hearing, I'd like to

         10  introduce Council Member Michael Nelson of the

         11  Committee.  I've already introduced Council Member

         12  David Yassky, my co- sponsor of the preconsidered

         13  Intro, and of course, I'm also joined by counsel to

         14  the Committee, Matthew Tollin, and our policy

         15  analyst Jonathan Ettricks.  I want to thank Lupe

         16  Todd, our press secretary.  If you'd like to,

         17  Council Member Yassky, you can say a few words about

         18  the preconsidered bill, or anything that's on your

         19  mind.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you,

         21  Chair Perkins. I am eagerly looking forward to the

         22  testimony of the witnesses.  I just want to thank

         23  you for holding this hearing and for your leadership

         24  on this issue in general.  As you know, I believe

         25  that this is as fundamental an issue as there is.
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          2  It is nothing less than the health and prosperity of

          3  our democracy which is at stake. I believe that as

          4  the use of referenda grows, we must bring referenda

          5  elections into the same system we use for all other

          6  elections, that is the campaign finance system,

          7  which is widely acknowledged to be the nation's

          8  finest.  When we undertake to change our charter

          9  here in New York City, the best ideas should win

         10  out, not the biggest pocketbook.  That is the

         11  purpose of your bill, and I fully support it.

         12                 As you noted, when the discussion

         13  began about this year's charter reform process and

         14  there was some speculation that the Mayor was going

         15  to spend substantial sums of money to ensure

         16  passage, I think that exposed what was really a

         17  loophole in our campaign finance system that does

         18  not apply to charter reform. Since then, it appears

         19  that maybe some of that spending will be avoided

         20  through voluntary restraint, and I certainly do hope

         21  that come October and November the Mayor does choose

         22  not to spend millions and millions of dollars to

         23  ensure passage of his proposal because I believe

         24  that would not be a fair democratic process. That's

         25  going to have to be voluntary.  I hope that before
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          2  the next charter reform season rolls around, we'll

          3  have been able to enact legislation that will make

          4  that the law.  Thank you again, Chair Perkins.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I want to take

          6  this moment to acknowledge the presence of the

          7  Chairperson of our Health Committee, Christine

          8  Quinn.

          9                 MS. QUINN:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I want to

         11  express our appreciation to the Campaign Finance

         12  Board, particularly the Executive Director Nicole

         13  Gordon, with whom we have been in touch in

         14  preparation for this meeting.  Normally we would be

         15  allowed to be the first person to testify, however,

         16  we do have a witness from an organization called the

         17  Ballot Initiative Strategy Center, who has come from

         18  Washington, D.C.  She has extended the courtesy to

         19  Christina Wolfhorse [phonetic] Representing that

         20  group to testify first.  Without further adieu, I'd

         21  like to have the representative from the Ballot

         22  Initiative Strategy Center please come forward.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Good afternoon.

         24  Would you please raise your right hand?  Do you

         25  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you are
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          2  about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

          3  nothing but the truth?

          4                 MS. WILL:  Yes.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  For

          6  the record could you state your name and your

          7  organization?

          8                 MS. WILL:  Christina Will for Ballot

          9  Initiative Strategy Center Foundation.  Thank you

         10  for giving me the opportunity today to speak about

         11  what I think is a very important piece of

         12  legislation.  Let me tell you a little bit about our

         13  organization.  The Ballot Initiative Strategy Center

         14  and Foundation is a national, nonpartisan

         15  organization.  We do research on the initiative

         16  process at both the state and local level.  We do

         17  education and training around helping folks run

         18  campaigns.  We analyze trends, and in particular, we

         19  look at the role money plays in ballot initiatives,

         20  including what you call here in New York charter

         21  amendments.

         22                 We have a project that we've been

         23  running for the last three years called Ballot

         24  Funding, where we've looked specifically at donors

         25  of ballot initiatives and the role that money plays
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          2  in campaigns.  We seek to shed light on supporters

          3  of ballot measures, to help protect the integrity of

          4  direct democracy and assist voters in making more

          5  informed decisions on election day as it relates to

          6  proposals.  I want to address two issues as it

          7  relates to the bill pending before you.  One is just

          8  more generally what the role in money plays in

          9  campaigns and why it makes sense to look at creating

         10  some kind of public financing system, and why I

         11  think that this bill is particularly worth adopting.

         12                 More generally speaking, money can

         13  have a distorting effect on the initiative process.

         14  We know this from being active with initiatives,

         15  hundreds of different initiatives across the country

         16  at the local and state level.  I think that the

         17  direct democracy pioneers of the process may not

         18  recognize what they created when it comes to how

         19  much money tends to be spent and the costs of modern

         20  political campaigning, including paid media,

         21  polling, mass media, TV ads,  have limited direct

         22  democracy and its use to the most well organized and

         23  well heeled special interests.

         24                 We do know that money plays a pivotal

         25  role in the outcomes of campaigns.  While there's
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          2  lots of debate at the academic level over the effect

          3  money exerts on proactive, the 'yes' campaigns,

          4  there's certainly wide agreement that money plays a

          5  pivotal role in no campaigns.

          6                 Money spent by ballot measure

          7  opponents is the number one determinant of defeating

          8  the ballot initiative.  Curbing money in initiative

          9  campaigns is, I think, equally important if not more

         10  important than the public financing system already

         11  established for candidates in that charter

         12  amendments are unique kinds of campaigns.  There's

         13  no personality associated with it.  There's no

         14  partisan cues, typically.  It's where lopsided

         15  spending can undermine the democratic debate around

         16  these measures.

         17                 I know that there's been some

         18  discussion about tailoring this particular bill to

         19  be broader, not just to apply to financing for the

         20  mayor and what he or she proposes, and also the

         21  Council, but to make it more open, from my

         22  understanding, to both opponents and proponents at

         23  the citizen level who would be trying to get a bill

         24  through.  And I think that is very worth looking at.

         25                 Let me just touch on a couple of
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          2  things that I think why this bill is worth serious

          3  consideration.  New York typically has a, compared

          4  to other states, weak disclosure system around

          5  initiatives and spending on charter amendments.

          6  This applies some ability to the special interests

          7  and how they may get behind something.  So I think

          8  it's unique to your system and it works in that

          9  respect.  It's legally viable.  There's lots of

         10  proposals that go forward in different states and at

         11  the local level to limit spending or limit a type of

         12  spending around initiatives which is really,

         13  frankly, unconstitutional.  Where it's be applied or

         14  tried, it doesn't pass the First Amendment test.  So

         15  in this case, this is a way to create some kind of

         16  control over the money in what is a legally, I

         17  believe, viable way.

         18                 It also in terms of equity has the

         19  potential to bring fairness back to the system by

         20  providing more balance in the campaigns and

         21  preventing things from being entirely lopsided.  And

         22  the last point I think is that it is voluntary and

         23  therefore it's not imposing restrictions and an

         24  extra burden whether it's applied to the Council or

         25  the Mayor or citizens who may opt to use the system
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          2  if you decide to tailor the bill more broadly.

          3                 We do have the infrastructure already

          4  in place.  It's is my understanding with the Public

          5  Financing System that is set up already for

          6  candidates. It'd be simple to administer,

          7  essentially.  I think the last point is that from

          8  what we are seeing across the country and advocating

          9  to try to make the process at the local level more

         10  democratic, this is really a model for other cities.

         11                 There is no other city that has such

         12  a proposal in place.  I think it could definitely

         13  serve as a model for other areas that want to

         14  provide more balance as it relates to their charter

         15  amendment process.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 New Yorkers have this need to be in

         19  the van garde so forgive us.  We have, I guess, more

         20  than our share of conceit about these type of

         21  matters.  As you know we are very proud of our

         22  campaign finance program that has apparently served

         23  as a model.  We've tried to model this legislation

         24  on the success of that particular piece of

         25  legislation which obviously focuses primarily on
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          2  political campaigns for office, whereas this focuses

          3  more on the referenda side.

          4                 Let me just ask a few quick

          5  questions.  Number one, clearly you've been studying

          6  the phenomenon of referenda throughout the country

          7  and these sort of ballot initiatives.  We see, in

          8  our limited perspective, some excesses typified by

          9  what's going on in California.  Where else have you

         10  perhaps seen some excesses that we might want to be

         11  aware of that may manifest themselves in ways that

         12  are somewhat unique but nevertheless that might help

         13  us in moving our ideas forward?

         14                 MS. WILL:  Where do we see excess

         15  usage of the process or abuse?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Abuse in terms

         17  of however you define abuse.

         18                 MS. WILL:  Certainly Oregon is the

         19  other state that has a tremendous amount of ballot

         20  activity.  In 2000 they had 26 measures that were on

         21  the ballot.  Certain states where they feel like,

         22  just any idea can get on without a lot of vetting.

         23  They've increased signature gathering requirements.

         24  I wouldn't necessarily advocate for that, but I

         25  think that it's important to do a variety of things
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          2  pre getting something qualified that allow

          3  initiative to be vetted and a fairly wide citizen

          4  pool to decide whether they want to sign a signature

          5  to move it forward.

          6                 I think the danger though, in some of

          7  the things that legislatures in particular are

          8  proposing to try to restrict the usage, end up

          9  making it more apt to be abused by special

         10  interests, by people who have more money to just

         11  spend to get anything qualified if they want to pay

         12  signature gatherers to do, rather than citizens who

         13  are actually trying to do something through a

         14  grassroots means, like the Class Size Initiative or

         15  a charter amendment that collected 115,000

         16  signatures just recently.

         17                 I think careful monitoring and

         18  looking at some of the other things that certainly

         19  other states and areas have done is interesting and

         20  important, but I think everything should be designed

         21  to be specific to how the system is used in New

         22  York.  I think that given there are some

         23  restrictions on the number of charter amendments a

         24  year, it's not something that is out of control, at

         25  least at this point.  Where I think it is out of
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          2  control is in some of the spending and lopsided

          3  campaigns --- so as much as we can do to curb that.

          4                 The other area that we do recommend

          5  and we've seen a lot of effort put in to try to get

          6  a handle on the number of initiatives is disclosure,

          7  looking at who is spending the money that does go

          8  forward, and having some information that is

          9  required to be given by campaigns so people can't

         10  hide behind whatever initiative that they're

         11  supporting.  I think when people know who are

         12  backing these things, it's a smell test and it

         13  provides citizens with more information and

         14  knowledge to make the right decision.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Just one final,

         16  quick question then I'll turn to Council Member

         17  Yassky.  What we are attempting to do is sort of

         18  even the playing field, minimize the extraordinary

         19  influence money has.  Where do you see that

         20  influence in other jurisdictions, as far as money is

         21  concerned?  Where do you see that abuse?

         22                 MS. WILL:  It tends to be in many

         23  cases in an opposition sense that an environmental

         24  group is trying to regulate the ownership of dams

         25  for example in Montana, and put it to the state to
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          2  own the dams rather than have this private system.

          3  The two companies that own the twelve dams in the

          4  state outspent the opponents forty one to one in

          5  opposition to that.

          6                 So usually where initiatives come in

          7  conflict with, and it tends to be private entities,

          8  where they make money or what their industry is, if

          9  they feel that it's under attack, they spend a lot

         10  to prevent those measures from going forward.  But

         11  there's a lot of individuals who use the process who

         12  have a lot of money to, for example, eliminate

         13  bilingual education, the sponsor of that measure in

         14  California and what just passed in Massachusetts,

         15  it's just some individual, a business man from

         16  Silicon Valley who believes that there shouldn't be

         17  such a thing as bilingual education and has spent

         18  millions of dollars of his own money trying to

         19  eliminate that where it exists.

         20                 The process has also been used

         21  effectively by people from a very political sense

         22  who want to hurt their opponents, their movement in

         23  politics.

         24                 An example of that would be anti-

         25  labor initiatives that have been qualified.
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          2  Frankly, the folks behind this tend to be very

          3  conservative who don't want labor unions to be able

          4  to spend the money that they have and have political

          5  participation through working class people.  There

          6  are initiatives called Paycheck Deception that would

          7  require sign off unions for allowing their members'

          8  fees to be used for political campaigns.

          9                 There's been attempts in several

         10  states to eliminate that.  And where labor unions

         11  have spent up to twenty million dollars in Oregon,

         12  twenty eight million dollars in California defeating

         13  those.  The initiative process was used as a tool

         14  just to drain the resources of what were opponents.

         15  It happens on the flip side, too.  But that's just

         16  an example of, it's not just necessarily the

         17  legislation, it's also used as a tactic to try to

         18  get at your political opponents.  Maybe not the

         19  healthiest aspect of the process, but it happens.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         21  Yassky?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you.  I

         23  really just want to thank the witness for her

         24  excellent testimony and say that what her testimony

         25  brings to light for me is the fact that an
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          2  additional benefit of the preconsidered intro we're

          3  considering, is that it could benefit citizen and

          4  grassroots groups that are seeking good ballot

          5  proposals.  Unlike other places where you have

          6  narrow, special interests trying to circumvent the

          7  elected government, what we've had here in New York

          8  is the emergency of charter reform as a process

          9  where the Mayor tries to circumvent the City

         10  Council.  It shuts out entirely citizen groups such

         11  as teachers and parents seeking smaller class sizes,

         12  who are seeking to use the referenda process in that

         13  way.  To get a ballot form proposal going, it takes

         14  a certain amount of funding, like anything does.

         15  One, I think, additional benefit of your bill is

         16  that it would help those groups have access to this

         17  process.  So I just want to say thank you.

         18                 MS. WILL:  Absolutely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

         20  Quinn?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         22  Actually, my first job after graduating from college

         23  was working on a referendum campaign in

         24  Massachusetts.  There was a question on the ballot

         25  that sought, unsuccessfully, to close down the two
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          2  nuclear power plants in Massachusetts, though my

          3  district did win, where I was Field Coordinator, not

          4  that it matters.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Anyone

          6  surprised?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I did have one

          8  of the plants in my district, that might have

          9  impacted it.  We were massively outspent by the

         10  nuclear industry.  This was just a citizens group.

         11  They had constant TV ads and ability to hire massive

         12  amounts of lawyers to keep some of our ads which

         13  were more controversial off of television.  It

         14  certainly is an out of whack system all over the

         15  country.

         16                 I wanted to ask what the situation

         17  was in California as it related to things like this?

         18  Because they seem to have just an unbelievable

         19  amount of referendums a year, and if there was

         20  anything that they did that was good or bad that we

         21  should look at, since they seem to be the state that

         22  does the most legislating through referendum.

         23                 MS. WILL:  In my experience there is

         24  a different political flavor in the western states

         25  compared to East Coast states that has led to high
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          2  usage of initiatives.  It's not to say that they're

          3  more populous, but it does have a more populous

          4  tradition in how it was even formed in those states.

          5  Citizens in the west really love them.  And they

          6  will sign the gazillion petitions that come before

          7  them because they believe in the right to at least

          8  choose.  I think what we're seeing today with the

          9  recall and the budget situation which could be

         10  linked in many cases to the kind of initiatives that

         11  have been passed that will have probably more folks

         12  questioning whether this is an appropriate way to

         13  govern and what the costs are.

         14                 Just to put things in perspective, if

         15  you look at 1996, which was the watershed year for

         16  the number of initiatives. There were ninety three

         17  initiatives on the ballot in the all the 24 states

         18  that allow them.  That same year, there were

         19  fourteen thousand bills passed in those same states.

         20                 So I think even though there's more

         21  visibility of the initiatives, to put it in

         22  perspective, ninety six laws versus fourteen

         23  thousand is not necessarily a process gone totally

         24  crazy, awry.  I think there's ways in which we

         25  should look at trying to make it more democratic
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          2  where we can, and I think that comes up more in the

          3  campaign context, and what we can do to mandate

          4  public hearings and debates on initiatives, which

          5  would also help grassroots groups.  To require a

          6  series of things for people who aren't just using it

          7  with a lot of money can equalize it and make some of

          8  these things more equitable.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Any other

         11  questions?  Let me ask one other question.  Where

         12  this approach is taken, have you had a chance to

         13  look at the fiscal impact?  Were they extremely

         14  expensive to impact?  Were they moderately

         15  expensive?  What can you say about that?

         16                 MS. WILL:  It depends on the subject

         17  matter of the law being proposed.  You could look

         18  at, and some argue that the fiscal crisis that many

         19  of the states are in as a result of some of the tax

         20  limitation measures that have largely been passed

         21  via citizen initiatives.  So I think that's the most

         22  direct fiscal impacts have had.

         23                 There are many states, I think have

         24  of the initiative states and many at the local

         25  level, that do require fiscal notes attached with
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          2  the initiative, so that citizens do have an idea of

          3  how the money -- to administer a new program, if it

          4  is a new program, what that is going to cost.

          5  Although I would say that those are often easily

          6  manipulated by opponents who are sometimes the

          7  governor or the legislature by how those figures are

          8  put together.

          9                 An example of that would be in

         10  Florida last year they had a Class Size Initiative

         11  at the statewide level.  The governor spent a

         12  tremendous amount of time trying to defeat and was

         13  very opposed.  And they came out with a fiscal note

         14  of twenty three billion dollars to implement.  And

         15  this was in the context of the campaign.  One the

         16  initiative was passed, it was approved by voters.

         17  They went back to the legislative committee to look

         18  at the real costs of implementing this and it was at

         19  five billion.  So it was, in the context of having a

         20  governor who was opposed to this particular measure,

         21  I believe inflated because of his opposition.

         22                 The other thing that you have to be

         23  careful about is to show cost savings.  In Ohio last

         24  year there was an initiative to require drug

         25  treatment instead of incarceration.  They really did
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          2  not get a fair fiscal note, because it just showed

          3  the cost of implementing the program without showing

          4  what is a major part of this piece of legislation,

          5  is lowering overall the cost to the state by not

          6  having automatic prison sentences and having

          7  incarceration and we know that from California's

          8  experience.  They can also be easily manipulated,

          9  but I think generally, it's important to give

         10  citizens as much information about the costs of

         11  these things, as we can.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         13  much.  I was actually focusing on if you knew of any

         14  campaign finance program for referenda as opposed to

         15  the particular initiatives.

         16                 MS. WILL:  Oh.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  And if you knew

         18  of any, what did you know of the cost to implement

         19  such a program?

         20                 MS. WILL:  I see.  There is no public

         21  or city level public financing for initiatives or

         22  referenda.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I just wanted

         24  to be clear. Okay, thank you very much for your

         25  testimony and for coming to the Big Apple to join us
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          2  in this model approach to how to use a campaign

          3  finance approach to referendum as we are using it

          4  with regard to political campaigns.  Thank you.

          5                 MS. WILL:  My pleasure.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Now we'd like

          7  to hear from the Campaign Finance Program, the stars

          8  of that highly regarded model, the members of the

          9  Campaign Finance Board, the Executive Director

         10  Nicole Gordon and her colleagues, Sue Ellen Dodell

         11  [phonetic] And Amy Loprest [phonetic].

         12                 MS. GORDON:  And Carol Campolo.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Carol Campolo.

         14  Thank you all.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Good

         16  afternoon.  Please raise your right hand.  Do you

         17  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you are

         18  about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and

         19  nothing but the truth?

         20                 MS. GORDON:  Yes.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         22  Could you for the record state your name?

         23                 MS. GORDON:  I am Nicole Gordon, the

         24  Executive Director of the New York City Campaign

         25  Finance Board here to testify on what was previously
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          2  numbered Intro 488A and is now the preconsidered

          3  introductory bill, which would provide matching

          4  funds at a four to one dollar rate to ballot

          5  proposal committees defined in the proposal as

          6  political committees which make expenditures in

          7  support of or in opposition to citywide ballot

          8  proposals.  We recently received the current

          9  proposal which has been a work in progress.  I know

         10  so I can't claim that our office has made a complete

         11  review of it, but I am prepared to give some

         12  initials reactions on behalf of the Board.

         13                 The Board appreciate the Council's

         14  intent apparent from the face of its proposal to

         15  support spirited debate on important issues of local

         16  concern and to create a level playing field on which

         17  to discuss them.  The current ways in which the

         18  Campaign Finance Act promotes these values now are

         19  through the voter guide and a never yet used

         20  provision of the Board's rules that allows for

         21  voluntary financial disclosure by ballot proposal

         22  committees.  As you know, the voter guide includes a

         23  detailed discussion about proposals.  It is

         24  distributed by mail to all registered voters in New

         25  York City and it is also posted in the web.
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          2                 The voter guide's discussion relies

          3  on an extensive solicitation of pro and con

          4  statements from the public as well as pro and con

          5  arguments prepared by the Board describing the major

          6  arguments made about ballot proposals.  The Board is

          7  pleased to have a consistent record of presenting

          8  the public with a balanced articulation of the

          9  substance and arguable advantages and disadvantages

         10  of the various proposals that have been addressed in

         11  Campaign Finance Board voter guides.  Nine voter

         12  guides have been published addressing ballot

         13  proposals starting in 1989.  In August 1990, a Board

         14  rule went into effect intending to give the public

         15  disclosure of campaign finance activity by ballot

         16  proposal committees.

         17                 Although this provision has never yet

         18  been used, we hope that any ballot proposal

         19  committees do file with the Board. And if they do,

         20  the Board will evaluate the efficacy of the rule in

         21  the Board's mandated post election report.

         22                 The Board believes, however, with

         23  respect to the proposal legislation, that there are

         24  legal policies and practical considerations that

         25  require your close scrutiny.
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          2                 First, Article VIII Section 1 of the

          3  State Constitution addressing the use of government

          4  funds for the use of promotion of ballot initiative

          5  raises questions about whether public funds may be

          6  used for this purpose.

          7                 Next, there are many potential

          8  unintended consequences of the proposal that must be

          9  addressed.  One, will the public funding of pro and

         10  con campaigns encourage more ballot initiatives and

         11  would that be a positive development?

         12                 Second, will the law make the playing

         13  field less level by funding more pro groups than

         14  con, or vice versa?  What are the potential costs,

         15  both in public matching funds and in administrative

         16  expenses?  What criteria would the Campaign Finance

         17  Board need to apply to evaluate the content of

         18  ballot proposal committee communications to ensure

         19  that public funds are being used for the intended

         20  purpose?  Are there First Amendment implications

         21  that are different from those that arise in

         22  candidates' campaigns?

         23                 Similarly, how does the Board as a

         24  practical matter effectively police so called

         25  coordinated activity between candidate committees
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          2  and ballot proposal committees if the incentive to

          3  create overlapping committees is increased?  And

          4  then, what mechanisms are available to combat

          5  violations and fraud?

          6                 This last area of concern implicating

          7  the areas of disclosure audit, and other enforcement

          8  oversight is crucial.  The proposal does not include

          9  explicit requirements for filing disclosure

         10  statements with the Board, raising the question how

         11  the Board will determine payment amounts, compliance

         12  with the rules, or the facial validity of tax dollar

         13  expenditures?

         14                 Similarly, there is not now a

         15  mechanism for the Board to make this information

         16  available to the public, which is a vital element to

         17  keep the process transparent.

         18                 Finally, there is no provision now

         19  for penalties to discourage and punish abuse.

         20  Indeed, the proposed legislation exempts ballot

         21  proposal committees from the ex prohibition on using

         22  public funds for payments to family members or

         23  business entities which members of the political

         24  committee have a ten percent or greater ownership

         25  interest.
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          2                 The rules for these ballot proposal

          3  committees should arguably be at least as stringent

          4  if not more so than those for candidate committees

          5  that currently participate in the campaign finance

          6  program.  That is because in the case of candidates,

          7  there is a requirement that candidates meet the

          8  standards to be placed on the ballot, and the

          9  candidates' opponents have an incentive to monitor

         10  compliance with ballot access laws.  Here there does

         11  seem to be a parallel standard that gives some

         12  minimum assurance of the bona fide of the ballot

         13  proposal committee.  What check would there be on

         14  individuals or groups who simply want to qualify for

         15  large amount of public funds to achieve ends

         16  unrelated to genuine debate about ballot proposals?

         17                 On a separate point, the legislation

         18  as drafted transposed the existing threshold and

         19  other limits that currently exist in the Act for

         20  Mayoral Candidates.  It does not appear that a

         21  separate study has been done to evaluate an

         22  appropriate balance between a minimum level of

         23  fundraising required to receive public funds on the

         24  one hand, and on the other hands, allow grassroots

         25  community groups to benefit from the expansion of
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          2  the program, nor does it appear that levels of

          3  public funding have been calculated to reflect an

          4  evaluation of appropriate cost.

          5                 Under the proposal, one ballot

          6  proposal committee this year, if this were in

          7  effect, could potentially receive up to $3,150,000.

          8  The Campaign Finance Program was established by the

          9  City Council to lessen the influence of big

         10  contributors on the elective process.  The drafters

         11  of the Act believe that it was important for average

         12  New Yorkers to have more influence on the ability of

         13  candidates in their communities to compete for local

         14  office.

         15                 Many of you sitting here today are

         16  the very community activists the Campaign Finance

         17  Act was intended to benefit.  Numerous unintended

         18  consequences, however, could arise from this

         19  legislation leading to greater influence by wealthy

         20  contributors and in the worst case, the wrongful use

         21  of public funds.  This of course is not the

         22  Council's intent, but the possibility and perhaps

         23  probability of fraud and other abuse must be

         24  considered.

         25                 The Board appreciates the intent of
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          2  this legislation and is interested in working with

          3  the Council to consider creative ways to encourage

          4  discourse on ballot issues and to help create a

          5  level playing field when that discourse occurs.  The

          6  Board believes, however, that the legislation as

          7  currently drafted more raised concerns than achieves

          8  its purposes at this time.

          9                 In the meantime, the Board is

         10  confident that its voter guide this year will be an

         11  important resource for voters, and if ballot

         12  proposal committees do file with the Board, the

         13  process will be more transparent.  This year for the

         14  first time the Board will be conducting a poll and

         15  using focus groups to begin the evaluate the

         16  efficacy of the voter guide.  When that process is

         17  concluded, and also of course if the public gets

         18  information from disclosure by ballot proposal

         19  committees to the Board, we will know much more than

         20  we do now about the value of the information that

         21  the public is receiving, and sources that are

         22  funding that information.  Thank you very much and

         23  I'd be pleased to answer any questions you may have

         24  for us.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very
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          2  much, first for your patience in allowing the guest

          3  from Washington to be the first witness; secondly

          4  and most importantly, for sharing your well

          5  considered positive thoughts about this legislation.

          6                 Clearly, despite some shortcomings

          7  that you point out, some criticisms or concerns that

          8  you raise, such legislation, you think, is

          9  appropriate, if properly drafted.

         10                 MS. GORDON:  I think the Board very

         11  much appreciates the notion of having an even

         12  playing field for ballot proposal discussion and of

         13  promoting a vigorous public debate.  I think the

         14  Council is tackling an extremely difficult area both

         15  in terms of a lot of policy implications and also in

         16  terms of actually making happen what you want to

         17  happen in terms of policy.

         18                 For example, one thing that I

         19  address, I think it's very hard to know sitting here

         20  today and given what political scene might look like

         21  at any given time, is it possible that you will have

         22  ten committees that are very successful with raising

         23  money and meeting the threshold and getting the

         24  public funds on the one of side of the issue, and

         25  then on the other hand, have one committee that is
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          2  successful and only have one tenth providing public

          3  funds on the other.  And I think that raises very

          4  difficult questions about how you want to structure

          5  this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I think that's

          7  an important observation.  I think to some extent

          8  we're faced with that.  We're talking about

          9  individual candidates.  Some folks have a better

         10  capacity for raising money than others.  In the end,

         11  we don't get an equal amount of money for all

         12  candidates.

         13                 MS. GORDON:  That's correct.  That is

         14  an issue, but it's also different in two respects.

         15  One is that for better or for worse, people can

         16  disagree about matching formulas for all public

         17  financing, etc.

         18                 There are two values that a matching

         19  program offers, even though in the end the

         20  candidates get different amounts of money.  One

         21  value is that it is intended as a reflection of the

         22  seriousness of the candidate, that the candidates

         23  who have support are getting money and that

         24  candidates who are marginal may not be getting as

         25  much money because the public is not committed
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          2  enough to give them amounts of money.  Reasonable

          3  people can disagree about whether that's the right

          4  way to go, but that value is one that's on the

          5  table.

          6                 Another value that is on the table

          7  and I think's it's overlooked a lot of the time with

          8  a matching program, and we've had testimony on this

          9  from candidates, individual citizens who give a

         10  contribution to a candidate and know that they're

         11  going to get a four to one match, a substantial

         12  match, are able to feel that they are engaged in the

         13  campaign, that they are making a serious

         14  contribution to politics even if they don't want to

         15  run for office.

         16                 I'm speaking here from complete

         17  ignorance about this.  I don't know whether the

         18  average citizen will feel engaged more because a

         19  contribution to a ballot proposal committee is a

         20  meaningful proposal.  I have no idea on that

         21  subject, but I raise the point because I think you

         22  can justify a matching program that ends up in

         23  disparate amounts going to candidates a little more

         24  obviously, at least to me, than you can justify

         25  programs that might give different amounts of money
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          2  to two sides of a public issue. Obviously people can

          3  disagree about that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I can

          5  appreciate our reasonable difference in that regard.

          6    I think one of the objectives is that we can get

          7  people to be as interested in these referenda as

          8  they are in campaigns through this process. Then it

          9  would be just like it is now in terms of

         10  candidacies.  Do you understand what I'm saying?  I

         11  think right now what we're suffering from

         12  unfortunately is that communities don't really vote.

         13  And that's something that we talk about leveling the

         14  playing field, not just in terms of the amount of

         15  resources spent, but also in terms of the cynicism

         16  or ignorance of the public and lack of participation

         17  in these referendum votes.

         18                 Some of what you say we're anxious to

         19  sit down and discuss with you to see how we can

         20  overcome some of these obvious obstacles that you

         21  seem to be raising and we look forward to that. I am

         22  somewhat reminded, however, of how the Campaign

         23  Finance Program got started when similar doubts were

         24  put on the table as we ventured in to a new area and

         25  ultimately those doubts were overcome.
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          2                 MS. GORDON:  To be sure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  So your

          4  testimony is quite encouraging in that regard in the

          5  sense that we are going down the right track.  It's

          6  the track that we've successfully gone down before

          7  and confronted the same sort of challenges and were

          8  able collectively to overcome them.  So thank you

          9  very much for sharing that.  Council Member Yassky,

         10  you had a question?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  I guess I

         12  would ask one question.  Some of the comments you

         13  made, or I guess some of the criticisms about the

         14  lack of requirement for reporting, the lack of

         15  prohibitions on payments to family members and

         16  things like that, those are things that can be cured

         17  fairly easily through revisions, if I understand.

         18  Those aren't insoluble problems.

         19                 MS. GORDON:  Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Or perhaps

         21  even by delegation of regulatory authority to fill

         22  in the kind of antifraud provisions that you have in

         23  other parts of the program.  I want to make sure I

         24  do understand your take on the basic thrust of it,

         25  which is that a matching funds program here would
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          2  promote fair and balanced debate.  I believe that's

          3  true.

          4                 At a couple of points your remarks

          5  threw up what I thought were cautionary notes about

          6  unintended consequences and maybe have ten

          7  committees on one side and one on the other, and

          8  recognizing that the government must operate in the

          9  world of uncertainty and take its best stab at what

         10  the consequences are going to be without any

         11  guarantee, I believe that this would promote fair

         12  and balanced debate and I'll tell you why.  I think

         13  that we're going to see more and more, and I'm

         14  afraid that we're going to see more and more of

         15  wealthy individuals pushing a pet idea, whether the

         16  individual is the mayor or not, or someone who has

         17  the mayor's ear and can get a charter revision

         18  appointed with the understanding that he or she is

         19  going to fund the effort to ensure passage.  I think

         20  that people will be discouraged from doing that if

         21  they know there's a matching funds program out there

         22  that will ensure some debate.  I guess my question

         23  to you is, does that make sense to you, based on

         24  your experience and watching how your program has

         25  operated?
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          2                 MS. GORDON:  In the abstract it

          3  certainly does make sense.  I think that one thing

          4  to be really clear about here, if the Council comes

          5  to a conclusion about a policy it wants to pursue

          6  and the way it wants to pursue it, the Board is

          7  obviously going to do its very best to implement

          8  whatever program is put in place.  I think our

          9  concern here is number one to make sure that all the

         10  alerts are out there so that whatever bill that did

         11  come out could be crafted to deal as well as

         12  possible with the different scenarios, but also in

         13  the policy area, when you say wealthy, the self-

         14  funded campaign let's say, might be discouraged, I

         15  think you also have to anticipate and think about

         16  and see how you want to go on this.  Right now the

         17  bill's threshold is $250,000.

         18                 Again, I don't know the answer to

         19  this question, but raising $250,000 is no small job.

         20    I know that on the one hand there is a concern to

         21  assist community activists, and on the other hand

         22  you don't want to go to far and just through around

         23  a lot of public money.  I don't know where that

         24  balance should be struck.  I don't know how far

         25  that's been studied.  Again, $250,000.  That's a
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          2  very serious threshold.  In that way, it's probably

          3  a very good protection.

          4                 It may also be, though, that the same

          5  people who are best able to self fund their

          6  campaigns are also best able to put together a

          7  committee that can raise $250,000.  I don't know the

          8  answers to those questions but I just think that

          9  they are things that have to be given some thought

         10  so that if you do decide to go forward you will have

         11  done your best political science type guess about

         12  what outcomes you're going to get.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  The bill the

         14  way it's currently drafted requires donations from

         15  no fewer than a thousand people, which is there to

         16  ensure a fairly broad based support.  I guess I

         17  would say, as this moves forward, if you have

         18  thoughts as to how to strike that balance I

         19  certainly would welcome hearing from you.

         20                 MS. GORDON:  Oh, absolutely.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Because I

         22  agree with you and think about this, I've wrestled

         23  with where to draw it and I think this bill kind of

         24  errs on the side, if you have to err on one side or

         25  the other, it errs on the side of protecting the
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          2  public treasury, which is a side I'm comfortable

          3  erring on.  But perhaps we could approximate the

          4  correct balance better.

          5                 MS. GORDON:  I'm not disagreeing with

          6  you about that.  And by the way, having heard some

          7  of the introduction that Chairman Perkins gave, in a

          8  sense answered some of my own questions and the

          9  Board's questions.  As long as people have thought

         10  it out and are going in with their eyes open.  And

         11  also on the drafting part, you're absolutely right,

         12  a lot of these people are very easily solved and

         13  knowing that this is a work in progress, I just

         14  wouldn't want to not say things that really do need

         15  to be addressed and I'm sure would be addressed if

         16  you decided to go forward.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         18  much.  I appreciate your testimony and your

         19  observations and mostly importantly your positive

         20  thrust in terms of the value of moving in this

         21  direction.

         22                 MS. GORDON:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  We're going to

         24  take a quick moment to take a vote.  Is Council

         25  Member Vallone ready?  While we're waiting for you
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          2  we'll call on our next panel.  Gene Russianoff from

          3  NYPIRG?  Megan Quattlebaum, Common Cause, and Josh

          4  Mason, the Working Families Party.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Good

          6  afternoon.  Could each of you raise your right hand?

          7                 Do you solemnly swear and affirm the

          8  testimony you are about to give is the truth, the

          9  whole truth, and nothing but the truth?  Could you

         10  each for the record state your name and your

         11  organization before you give your testimony?

         12                 MS. QUATTLEBAUM:  I am Megan

         13  Quattlebaum.  I am from Common Cause New York.

         14                 MR. MASON:  Josh Mason, Working

         15  Families Party.

         16                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  I'm Gene Russianoff

         17  with the  New York Public Interest Research Group.

         18                 MS. QUATTLEBAUM:  I believe I'm

         19  starting.  Common Cause New York appreciates the

         20  opportunity to offer testimony today on bills and

         21  resolutions relating to election reform and campaign

         22  finance reform.  We, with many of our civic

         23  colleagues, have been extremely troubled by both the

         24  process and the content of New York State's

         25  implementation of the Help America Vote Act thus
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          2  far.  This national law holds great promise and

          3  great peril for voters, especially New York City

          4  voters, and we must work to ensure that our State

          5  creates a system that promotes ease and

          6  accessibility in voting for everyone.

          7                 We have been actively lobbying New

          8  York State lawmakers to pass legislation to protect

          9  under the new HAVA laws. While the Assembly has

         10  shown leadership, the Senate has yet to act. Behind

         11  the scenes lobbying that seems to stymie senate

         12  action is troubling, though not surprising.

         13                 Common Cause New York supports the

         14  passage of the following resolutions relating to how

         15  New York State will implement the Help America Vote

         16  Act:  Resolution 1030, urging the senate to pass and

         17  the governor to sign Assembly Bill 5473 to amend the

         18  current election law to require all polling places

         19  to be accessible to voters with physical

         20  disabilities; Resolution 1031 urging passage of

         21  Assembly Bill 8841 to implement certain mandates of

         22  HAVA to drastically improve the electoral process in

         23  New York State by among other things establishing a

         24  uniform administrative complaint procedure for any

         25  person who believes there is a violation of Title
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          2  III of the Help America Vote Act of 2002; Resolution

          3  1032 urging passage of Assembly Bill 8834 that would

          4  amend current election law to prevent undervoting by

          5  requiring the use of sensor latch mechanisms on

          6  voting machines; Resolution 1033 urging passage of

          7  Assembly Bill 8842 that would implement certain

          8  mandates of the Help America Vote Act and establish

          9  new voter identification requirements for mail- in

         10  registrants, and providing for statewide

         11  computerized voter registration list; Resolution

         12  1034 urging passage of Assembly Bill 8831 that would

         13  amend the current paper ballot instructions to

         14  explicitly clarify the importance of avoiding

         15  casting overvotes and to notify voters of their

         16  right to replacement ballot; Resolution 1035

         17  supporting the newly amended Chapter 263 of the Laws

         18  of New York regarding posting of information

         19  relevant to the electoral process in conformance

         20  with HAVA and urging the adoption of an explicit

         21  voter's bill of rights that fully informs the

         22  electorate of their fundamental right to cast a

         23  vote; Resolution 1036 urging passage of Assembly

         24  Bill 8833 that would provide for county board of

         25  elections to assume control of voting machines and
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          2  other functions relating to the election

          3  administration process; and finally, Resolution 1037

          4  urging the passage of the Voting Systems Standards

          5  Act, Assembly Bill 8847 to establish new standards

          6  for voting machines, ensuring access to the ballot

          7  by voters with disabilities, adopting a single

          8  statewide voting machine through a competitive

          9  bidding process, and requiring a verifiable voter

         10  audit trail.

         11                 With regard to the local law to amend

         12  the New York City Administrative Code in relation to

         13  creating a referenda finance program within the

         14  current campaign finance program, Common Cause New

         15  York expresses interest in this idea and is looking

         16  forward to dialogue with the Campaign Finance Board

         17  on how to implement such a program.

         18                 As we are witnessing the drowning

         19  effect of money and politics in California's

         20  referenda system, it would clearly be wise for us to

         21  examine how our nationally recognized campaign

         22  finance program might be used to mitigate this

         23  growing phenomenon.  We look forward to more debate

         24  on this crucial issue. Again, thank you for the

         25  opportunity to present testimony.
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          2                 MR. MASON:  Hi, my name is Josh

          3  Mason.  I'm here from the Working Families Party.

          4  I'd like to testify briefly in favor of public

          5  financing for charter amendments and other

          6  referenda.  Our perspective at the Working Families

          7  Party is that public money in elections is a good

          8  thing in general, and the private money in elections

          9  is a bad thing, and so to us it seems like a very

         10  natural step in some ways to extend our very

         11  successful public financing system to the process of

         12  amending the City charter and other ballot

         13  initiatives.

         14                 At the same time we don't want to

         15  undermine the existing public finance system.  We

         16  believe this bill has been crafted in such a way

         17  that it will not do that.  It rewards grassroots

         18  involvement.  It helps level the playing field,

         19  whereas has often been the case with ballot issues

         20  in the past, one side has a great deal of funding

         21  and the other side has little or none, although the

         22  amount of money that could be available from this

         23  bill is small compared with what someone like the

         24  Mayor could spend.  It's our belief that a small

         25  amount of money can go a long way and can be more
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          2  than proportionate to the dollar amount when it's

          3  going to groups that have a strong grassroots base,

          4  so we think that the amounts of money involved in

          5  this bill are totally appropriate.

          6                 At the same time, we are not fans in

          7  general of the number of charter amendments that

          8  have been proposed in recent years and we think that

          9  this bill, again has been crafted in such a way that

         10  it will not increase the number of charter

         11  amendments we face.  We think that often charter

         12  amendments are used to circumvent the legislative

         13  process and so we're pleased that this bill only

         14  provides money once a bill has already been placed

         15  on the ballot.  It won't help place additional

         16  proposals on the ballot.

         17                 We think also that the very high

         18  hurdle for funding which some of the earlier

         19  witnesses have mentioned is appropriate in the sense

         20  that it will limit the drain on the public treasury

         21  and it will ensure that money only goes to people

         22  that really have a strong grassroots base.  And for

         23  the same reason, because of this high hurdle, we're

         24  very doubtful that it will increase the number of

         25  these campaigns or cause some of the other problems
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          2  that people suggested.

          3                 We don't see any First Amendment

          4  issues since it's a voluntary system.  And we think

          5  that the Campaign Finance Board, as I think Nicole

          6  Gordon indicated in her testimony, would be more

          7  than capable of dealing with question of fraud or

          8  coordination with candidates because the kind of

          9  outcome we would not want to see is a weakening of

         10  the existing campaign finance law, but we think this

         11  law has been crafted in such a way that it would not

         12  do that. Working Families Party strongly supports

         13  this bill and we hope we can make any changes

         14  necessary to get it passed into law.  Thanks again

         15  for the opportunity to testify.

         16                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         17  Gene Russianoff for the New York Public Interest

         18  Research Group. Although you have a copy of my

         19  written statement, I'm going to address both the

         20  campaign finance proposal and the resolutions and

         21  try and do it briefly.  You're all aware that in the

         22  last couple of months the Mayor as a supporter of

         23  the upcoming charter proposal and opponents of it

         24  have had fierce debate about how much should be

         25  spent by both sides in proposing or opposing it.
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          2  There's good reason to fear that New York may go the

          3  way of California where ballot initiatives are big

          4  bucks affairs and special interest contributions

          5  dominate.  There are a lot of warning signs.

          6  Charter revision commissions used to be a once in a

          7  generation event.  Now they're an every year affair.

          8                 There's been high spending in recent

          9  years on ballot proposals, particularly in 1993 and

         10  1996 by both opponents and supporters of term

         11  limits.  As we speak, the United Federation of

         12  Teachers and education advocacy groups are seeking

         13  to put a measure on the ballot to create a new

         14  charter commission to limit class size in city

         15  schools, and we are yet to know what both sides will

         16  spend on this year's referendum.

         17                 With these factors in mind, NYPIRG is

         18  in favor of establishing a program to limit spending

         19  and contributions by charter ballot committees.  We

         20  think the preconsidered intro before you now does a

         21  good job of that, but we look forward to a lively

         22  debate in designing a workable program.  I think

         23  it's a challenge. I think the Campaign Finance Board

         24  laid out what some of the challenges were.  But I

         25  was very encouraged by the testimony.
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          2                 As Council Member Yassky said, some

          3  of the issues they raise are clearly not tough to

          4  address, and others are and deserve a good debate.

          5  We've written to the Campaign Finance Board asking

          6  them to conduct a post election analysis of this

          7  year's spending.

          8                 As Nicole Gordon mentioned, there is

          9  a regulation that the Board has promulgated in the

         10  past that allows ballot committees to voluntarily

         11  disclose with the Board.  We've written as many of

         12  the players as we could figure out that might spend

         13  money on the charter proposals and ask them to

         14  voluntarily comply.

         15                 This is not in my written testimony,

         16  but I do think one thing that the committee should

         17  consider as the bill moves forward is whether there

         18  should be anything put into it that would parallel

         19  the current charter provision that attempts to

         20  prevent the elected officials from using public

         21  funds to promote their candidacies.

         22                 We do have an uneven playing field

         23  now.  In 2001, Mayor Giuliani spent more than a

         24  million dollars supporting that year's ballot

         25  proposals with government financed materials,
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          2  targeted mailings.  We've also written to Mayor

          3  Bloomberg and Speaker Miller urging that newsletters

          4  and other materials not advocate on behalf of this

          5  year's charter proposals.  The members here and the

          6  Mayor are entitled to their views and entitled to go

          7  out and take their stand, but it's wrong to use

          8  newsletters and mailings to promote a yes or note

          9  vote on the charter proposals.  Lastly, the nine

         10  resolutions before you, we support them all.  Thank

         11  you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you all.

         13  Did you each get a chance to hear the testimony that

         14  came before you, particularly in terms of the

         15  Campaign Finance Board?  I know you have made some

         16  comments about Ms. Gordon's testimony.  I was

         17  wondering if anyone else had some observations on

         18  her testimony that they wanted to share?  As they

         19  address the bill, they offer some challenges, some

         20  criticisms, some areas of difficulty to implement.

         21                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  My concern is that

         22  the bill now adopts the mayoral standard, four

         23  million dollars spending cap, forty five hundred

         24  dollar contribution limit, and the $250,000

         25  threshold.  I think those are reasonable numbers to
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          2  start out with, but I think that the Board should

          3  look at this year's election, and we should look at

          4  some past elections and maybe somewhere else in the

          5  country, because I don't know if those numbers are

          6  perfect. I'm thinking, as a grassroots group, the

          7  idea of raising $250,000 from a thousand people in

          8  the City goes beyond daunting.  The tension that you

          9  have to resolve is between protecting the public

         10  purse from granting public funds in a way that would

         11  risk spending too much money with helping groups

         12  that would really need to be helped.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  How much can

         14  you raise?

         15                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  I don't know.  We

         16  had a charter campaign in 1988.  We raised ten

         17  thousand dollars and we thought we were doing great.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  How much?

         19                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  Ten thousand.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  In 1988?

         21  That's about one hundred thousand dollars today.

         22                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  I'm not criticizing.

         23    I just think it's worth a thoughtful discussion.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  No, it is.  It

         25  is tough.  I think to some extent what we were
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          2  attempting to accomplish, particularly with regard

          3  to groups of your grassroots orientation, that is

          4  very difficult.  Even for those that we intend to

          5  work with on a more sophisticated level is still a

          6  lot of money.

          7                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  I believe I'm

          8  correct in saying the following.  Other than

          9  individuals, let's say Ron Lauder in 1993, I don't

         10  think anyone or even the supporters of the 1996

         11  proposal to change term limits, no one tried to

         12  raise money in a way that involves small

         13  contributions from a wide base.  They either had a

         14  lot of money in their own pocket or they took

         15  concentrated contributions from various interests.

         16  So that's a strong reason for this bill which is to

         17  try and change that pattern so that people go out to

         18  a broader array of New Yorkers and not rely on a

         19  handful of special interests.  I don't think it's

         20  been done, that's my point.  I don't think anyone

         21  has raised $250,000 from a thousand contributors for

         22  a ballot proposal in New York City.  But they never

         23  had to.  They either were loaded or had access to

         24  people with money.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I think
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          2  lowering that threshold as you suggests does allow

          3  us to be more democratic in the little "d" sense of

          4  the word.  I think that helps us accomplish that

          5  type of participation that we're looking for and the

          6  type of debate that we're looking for.  Any other

          7  comments?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  With your

          9  indulgence, Mr. Chair, just to thank all the members

         10  for the great deal of work you've put in on trying

         11  to develop a proposal which, as you each point out,

         12  it's a thorny problem to solve.  But we can't look

         13  at it and say it's thorny.  We've got to part the

         14  branches and figure out a way there.  And I just

         15  want to publicly acknowledge and thank you for your

         16  work on this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you all

         18  very much for your testimony and your work in this

         19  field.  On behalf of the people of the City of New

         20  York, we very much appreciate it.  Right now we'd

         21  just like to take a quick vote on the resolutions

         22  that have come before us.  Before we take that vote,

         23  I want to acknowledge the presence of one of our

         24  committee members, Eva Moskowitz, on my left as

         25  always.  And on my right, rarely, Council Member
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          2  Madeline Provenzano.  But today she was on my left,

          3  believe it or not.  Thank you very much.

          4                 At this point we'd like to take a

          5  vote on the resolutions.  Also, I want to

          6  acknowledge the presence of another one of our

          7  members of the City Council who is also very

          8  interested in these reform measures, Council Member

          9  Bob Jackson.  We're now going to vote on the

         10  resolutions.  I'm sorry, I thought I recognized you

         11  earlier.  The Chairman of our Public Safety

         12  Committee, the dynamic Peter Vallone, Jr.

         13                 CLERK:  Perkins?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Aye on all.

         15                 CLERK:  Provenzano?  Nelson?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye on all.

         17                 CLERK:  Williams?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WILLIAMS:  Aye on all.

         19                 CLERK:  Moskowitz?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Aye on

         21  all.

         22                 CLERK:  Comrie?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         24                 CLERK:  Vallone?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  May I
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          2  briefly be excused? Is that a yes?  Just briefly, I

          3  intend to vote aye on all and I do support the goal

          4  of these bills.  I have two minor problems. Number

          5  one and this is just a technical concern, half of

          6  them or more than half say that we drastically

          7  improved the process while the other half says

          8  amend.  I don't think it's our place to be putting

          9  opinions in the descriptions like that because I

         10  intend to vote for them but perhaps someone who

         11  doesn't is not against drastically improving the

         12  system they just have other concerns with this.  I

         13  believe amend is the proper word to use when we do

         14  this. But more importantly, most of these bills if

         15  not all say that these bills are in response to the

         16  antiquated, dilapidated and discriminatory state of

         17  the voting process within the nation.  I do not

         18  happen to agree that this nation has a

         19  discriminatory voting process, however I do agree as

         20  does everyone up here I believe there are certain

         21  areas of the country that there is a discrimination

         22  problem.  I've been informed through your

         23  representatives that you will address that in the

         24  final version of this and actually have it read

         25  something along the lines of the discriminatory
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          2  state of the voting process within certain areas of

          3  the nation.  Based on that, I'll vote aye on all and

          4  commend you for your work on this issue.

          5                 CLERK:  By a vote of seven in the

          6  affirmative, zero negative, with no abstentions, all

          7  items are adopted with the exception of Resolution

          8  552A, which was adopted by a vote of six in the

          9  affirmative, one in the negative, and no

         10  abstentions.  Council Members, please sign the

         11  Committee reports.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         13  much one and all for your cooperation and support on

         14  these resolutions.  I should point out for the

         15  record, with all due respect, I agree one hundred

         16  percent with your corrections or your modifications

         17  and one such area where we have a record of this

         18  problem with regard to discriminatory practices

         19  happens to be New York City in which we have Bronx,

         20  Brooklyn, and Manhattan under the voting rights act

         21  because of past practices and so you're right, it

         22  does apply to very specific areas and I'm sorry to

         23  say that we have to make note of this fact, that New

         24  York is amongst those areas that still has that

         25  problem.
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          2                 Thank you very much.  Now we're going

          3  to go back to our testimony and we're going to hear

          4  from Mr. Mike McGuire of the Working Families Party,

          5  and Kathy Casey of 337 West 21 Street.

          6                 MR. McGUIRE:  Good afternoon Chairman

          7  Perkins and distinguished committee members.  My

          8  name is Mike McGuire.  Most of you know me but today

          9  I'm appearing as the State Treasurer of the Working

         10  Families Party.

         11                 I come before you today to discuss

         12  one specific provision in Intro 488, that of

         13  qualified campaign expenditures for ballot

         14  proposals.  New York City has one of the finest, if

         15  not the finest, campaign systems in the country.

         16  This system has raised levels of democracy in our

         17  City to unheard of heights.

         18                 In the 2001 municipal election, with

         19  more than two hundred candidates vying for fifty one

         20  City Council seats, the Black Latino and Asian

         21  Caucus now makes up half of the City Council.  This

         22  system opens the door of the elective office to the

         23  every-man, not the rich, not the powerful, but the

         24  working men and women, the activists and the

         25  advocates, the people who are the very backbone of
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          2  every community of this City.  And again, while our

          3  system is among the best in the country, there is a

          4  very large loophole in it.  That loophole is

          5  regarding spending on ballot proposals.

          6                 Having ballot proposals exempted from

          7  the campaign finance system defeats its entire

          8  purpose.  Amending the City Charter is akin to

          9  amending the Constitution of the United States. If

         10  the Bush Administration could amend the Constitution

         11  almost at will, would they care about the opinions

         12  of the officials in the house and senate that the

         13  people elected?  Of course not. Fortunately, the

         14  White House doesn't have that ability.

         15                 Unfortunately, the Mayor of New York

         16  City does.  The fact of the matter is, for the last

         17  half a dozen years or so, mayoral ballot proposals

         18  on charter reform have been used to block other

         19  ballot initiatives or to advance political issues

         20  that would have difficulty moving through the

         21  legislative branch of City government.  What was

         22  once an extremely serious matter has now become a

         23  pawn in an end around maneuver to circumvent the

         24  democratic process.

         25                 There have now been more charter
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          2  reform commissions in the last six years than there

          3  were in the hundred years preceding the last two

          4  administrations.  Under Edward Koch, who was Mayor

          5  of New York City for twelve years, there was only

          6  one charter revision commission.  That commission

          7  studied the issues and took public commentary for

          8  more than two years before proposing any ballot

          9  questions.  If you combined all of the time that all

         10  the charter revision commissions under the last two

         11  administrations have studied the issues, it would

         12  not surpass the amount of time that Koch's one

         13  charter revision commission considered its

         14  questions.

         15                 It seems as though the issues that

         16  would appear on the ballot were predetermined before

         17  public comments were taken. If the President of the

         18  United States could put together a committee and see

         19  how he could amend the Constitution of the United

         20  States and did so year after year, the country would

         21  be up in arms. Somehow, through the vagaries of

         22  decades of politics, we allow it here.  And since it

         23  is allowed, those opposing Intro 48 will surely

         24  argue that this bill stifles free speech.  I submit

         25  that the law allows a mayor to impanel a charter
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          2  review commission which then blocks any other

          3  referendum from appearing on the ballot is the true

          4  mechanism for stifling free speech.  It was

          5  initially used that way by Mayor Bloomberg's

          6  predecessor to block the voters from deciding

          7  whether to allow to use public money to build Yankee

          8  Stadium.

          9                 This year, an independent referendum

         10  was proposed that would limit the class size in New

         11  York City public schools, a worthy idea and one that

         12  would surely reap benefits for the City for

         13  generations to come.  However, despite the

         14  collection of thousands of signatures, that

         15  referendum is not allowed to appear on the ballot

         16  because the Mayor's Charter Revision Commission's

         17  ballot questions block any other referenda from

         18  appearing.  I'm not suggesting that the

         19  Administration use charter revision to stop the

         20  class size referendum from appearing on the ballot,

         21  but it's one of the consequences that tend to stifle

         22  free speech and squelch the democratic process.

         23                 MS. CASEY:  What we have is a system

         24  where one person can pick a panel to devise ballot

         25  questions, a system that allows that one person to
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          2  eliminate any other questions from the ballot, a

          3  system where that one person can spend unlimited

          4  amounts of money to ensure passage of these

          5  questions.  It sure doesn't sound like free speech

          6  to me.  It doesn't even sound like democracy.  On

          7  behalf of all the members of the Working Families

          8  Party in New York City, I urge this committee to

          9  swiftly and decisively pass Intro 488.  Thank you.

         10                 Good afternoon.  When I entered the

         11  room I thought that the proposed legislation was

         12  only dealing with referenda, not with initiatives,

         13  but after hearing the testimony of the first two

         14  witnesses I realize that it relates to both.  Based

         15  on what I've heard so far I respectfully suggest to

         16  the committee members and their staffs that they

         17  consider the possibility of separating the

         18  provisions of the proposed legislation dealing with

         19  referenda and dealing with initiatives.

         20  Parenthetically I would say that if you stopped a

         21  hundred passersby on the street and asked them

         22  what's the difference between a referendum and an

         23  initiative I don't think you'd get the right answer

         24  from even five people in any part of the City which

         25  has to do with the woeful lack of proper education
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          2  about our government system in our schools.

          3                 Moving right along, as Council Member

          4  Yassky stated earlier, it is crucial to prevent a

          5  continuation of the practice by whoever is mayor of

          6  overcoming the efforts of our elected officials who

          7  compose the City Council and overcoming the efforts

          8  of community activists by, so to speak, packing the

          9  ballot with referenda which the Mayor then lobbies

         10  for and supports by spending tax payers' money and

         11  or by spending his or her own private money.  I

         12  think the metaphor here is that it's the moral

         13  equivalent as if a bank manager were to openly steal

         14  money from bank depositor's accounts and then use

         15  that money to buy baseball bats and beat the people

         16  over the head and break their limbs and crush their

         17  organs.

         18                 It's common knowledge that during the

         19  current election cycle the Mayor has tried to keep

         20  off the ballot a citizen initiated proposal with

         21  much public support with the goal of limiting class

         22  size in New York City public schools.  Again, this

         23  is a glaring example of what has been going on for

         24  several years. I started reading the daily

         25  newspapers when I was about ten years old.  During
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          2  the past forty years the actions of Giuliani and

          3  Bloomberg are the only ones that stick in my mind

          4  and stick in my craw in terms of egregious abuse of

          5  the referendum process.  In terms of that I fully

          6  support the intentions of this proposed legislation

          7  and I think the sooner it is passed the better,

          8  although obviously it will not help us in terms of

          9  the upcoming November election.

         10                 However, I do reiterate as I said

         11  earlier, I respectfully request that the Council

         12  members consider completely separating within the

         13  proposed legislation the provisions that refer to

         14  referenda and those that refer to initiatives and in

         15  doing so, I'm sure you will pay heed to the remarks

         16  made earlier by Nicole Gordon of the Campaign

         17  Finance Board.  Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         19  very much.  The descriptiveness was okay too, by the

         20  way.  Poetic license to get your point across.  Will

         21  counsel please read the testimony into the record?

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  We received

         23  testimony from Bill Lynch dealing with this proposal

         24  and the charter revision process.

         25                 MR. LYNCH:  Thank you for this
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          2  opportunity to testify today.  My name is Bill Lynch

          3  and I served on a charter revision commission that

          4  just made its recommendations for the November

          5  ballot.  I was one of two commissioners who did not

          6  agree with the conclusions of the commission, and I

          7  issued a minority report that is included online

          8  with the commission's final report at their website.

          9                 I accepted an appointment to this

         10  charter revision commission because its goals were

         11  to enhance voter participation, especially in

         12  communities of color, the issues I've put forth and

         13  that were suggested to the commission in this area

         14  included initiating same day voter registration,

         15  extending voting days, and allowing non federal

         16  citizens to vote in city elections. None of these

         17  issues were recommended by the commission for voter

         18  approval.

         19                 Indeed, an opinion was issued by the

         20  Corporation Counsel that only the State could make

         21  these changes and they were beyond the scope of the

         22  commission's jurisdiction.  But I still believe that

         23  these changes remain the best way to enhance voter

         24  participation in this City.  Instead we'll be voting

         25  in November on a radical change in the way we elect
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          2  our citywide officials and City Council eliminating

          3  party primaries.  While it is being promoted as a

          4  way to enfranchise more voters, instead ends the

          5  right of rank and file party voters to elect their

          6  party nominees and replace it with a hybrid system

          7  for which there was actually almost no support

          8  outside the majority of the commission.

          9                 Now it is up to the voters of New

         10  York to decide whether to accept or reject the

         11  proposed system.  I want to support the bill before

         12  this committee that would limit the campaign

         13  spending, the principals involved in making these

         14  proposals.  This is a charter revision commission

         15  entirely appointed by the Mayor. It would therefore

         16  be entirely in appropriate for the Mayor to fund

         17  private campaign to pass a proposal from his

         18  commission.  The same thing would be true if the

         19  City Council were to put forth a charter proposal.

         20  Once the proposal has been put forth it is up to

         21  citizen groups and individuals in New York to debate

         22  it and battle it out.

         23                 I am also concerned about the extent

         24  to which the Charter Revision Commission itself is

         25  used to promote their proposals.  New York State's
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          2  municipal home rule expressly prohibits the

          3  Commission itself from extending funds to advocate

          4  for the passage of its proposal.  It is allowed to

          5  educate the public about the content of the

          6  proposals, but not to advocate for its passage.

          7  Since this principal has been violated by past

          8  commissions, New York Public Interest Research Group

          9  has written to the Mayor and commission urging them

         10  to make sure this does not happen this year.  But

         11  I've already observed that the Commission's report,

         12  press releases and public announcements have crossed

         13  the line from education to advocacy.  They must be

         14  reigned in and I believe that the City Council could

         15  provide the oversight necessary to make sure that

         16  they fill their education role properly.

         17                 Finally, let me say that I am

         18  concerned the charter revision process has become

         19  abused in New York City.  In the past, charter

         20  revision commissions were appointed once in a

         21  generation to deal with systemic problems in our

         22  system of governance.  The last credible charter

         23  revision commission was appointed by Mayor Koch in

         24  1988 with consultations from a range of elected

         25  officials and interests in the City.  It enjoyed a
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          2  mandate to revise New York City's government in the

          3  wake of a disbanding Board of Estimates. It worked

          4  for two years, taking testimony and balancing

          5  interests and came up with a more democratic system

          6  that needs to be ratified.

          7                 This commission worked for a few

          8  months and one of its proposals it passed will not

          9  go into effect until 2009, yet the people of New

         10  York had little time to give their input into our

         11  process and even less time to consider the merits of

         12  these proposals.  I am proud to say that I was part

         13  of the only mayoral administration in the last four

         14  not to appoint a charter commission.  When David

         15  Dinkins became Mayor, we had just completed the

         16  massive charter revision I talked about.  There was

         17  no need for such a vast civic undertaking, again

         18  during our four years.

         19                 Unfortunately, the mayors started to

         20  realize that he could appoint charter revision

         21  commissions as a ploy to keep other voter referenda

         22  off the ballot.  This is a total misuse of the

         23  charter revision process and I highly the question

         24  the way to expend taxpayer funds in a fiscal crisis.

         25  There are ways to make small changes in the charter
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          2  through the City Council as needed.  Charter

          3  revision should be reserved for broad, systemic

          4  changes that can not be made any other way.

          5                 If mayors do not use the charter

          6  revision commission process more judiciously, it may

          7  be time to propose changes in the municipal home

          8  rule that would compel them to.  But the issue at

          9  hand is whether we can make the current process that

         10  we are in this year better.  The bill before you is

         11  a small way to make the process more democratic,

         12  preventing one interested person with money from

         13  trying to bend the system to his or her will.  I

         14  urge the Council to enact it as part of a larger

         15  effort to improve the charter revision process.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  We also just

         17  received from Brennan Center for Justice at NYU

         18  School of Law the testimony of Adam H. Morse.  I

         19  will not read all of the testimony, but I think it's

         20  helpful to just read a small portion of it.  I

         21  should point out first of all that they're in

         22  support of the legislation, the proposal local law

         23  represents an innovative approach to the problems

         24  raised in campaigns over ballot proposals.  No case

         25  has directly addressed the constitutionality of
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          2  matching funds grants for public financing systems.

          3  A line of cases starting with Buckley v. Vallejo,

          4  424 U.S. Annotated 1, 1976, pro curiam, has upheld

          5  voluntary public financing systems for candidate

          6  elections. Even when those systems apply spending

          7  limits to participating candidates, the analysis in

          8  such cases focuses on whether the system is totally

          9  voluntary.  The proposed matching funds system for

         10  ballot measures is completely voluntary.  Even the

         11  spending limits apply only to committees that accept

         12  public money. Individuals that wish to make large

         13  contributions to support or oppose a ballot proposal

         14  can work through committees that opt out of the

         15  system.  Based on prior ballot measure campaigns,

         16  there is no reason to believe that participation in

         17  the system will be essential to success.

         18                 Ballot proposals are designed to

         19  foster direct democracy where the people can

         20  directly control elections.  Too frequently,

         21  corporations or wealthy individuals who provide the

         22  public with one- sided information dominate

         23  campaigns.  The proposed local law allows everyone

         24  to engage in as much speech as they desire, but

         25  ensures that groups of voters with limited resources
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          2  will be able to make their voices heard as well.

          3  With that testimony submitted by Adam Morse,

          4  Associate Counsel of the Democracy Program at the

          5  Brennan Center for Justice at NYU School of Law, I

          6  think we have not only received this testimony in

          7  support of our legislation and the direction that

          8  we're headed, but also I think his testimony

          9  captures the essence of what this hearing was about,

         10  which is to try and democratize our process of

         11  referendum in such a way that money does not dictate

         12  outcomes but instead, creates a level playing field,

         13  such that merit and participation are allowed to be

         14  factored in to the process and to ultimately decide

         15  the difference.

         16                 This hearing was intended to make

         17  those points.  We are appreciative of the various

         18  witnesses that came to participate and we received

         19  quite a wealth of good information, constructive

         20  criticism, as well as commitment, even on the part

         21  of those that were critical, to work with us to

         22  develop a piece of legislation that will make sense

         23  for the people of the City of New York.  With that

         24  in mind, this hearing is adjourned.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Reading into
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          2  the record amendments to the various resolutions

          3  passed by the Governmental Operations Committee,

          4  September 29, 2003.  Resolutions 1030 to 1037,

          5  wherever in the title "drastically improved"

          6  appears, it will be changed to "amended", such is

          7  the understanding of all the Council Members, and

          8  the various resolutions wherever "a discriminatory

          9  state" appears, it will be changed to "within

         10  certain areas, discriminatory", as approved by all

         11  the Council Members.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, SYLVIE van HOEK, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 29th day of September 2003.
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